
BEALS
MEMORIAL
LIBRARY--

Serving Winchendon Since 1913



“HOW GREATLY THE VALUE OF THE LIBRARY IS
ENHANCED BY THE CHARLES L. BEALS

BUILDING WILL BE MADE MORE AND MORE
APPARENT IN THE COMING YEARS. WE BEST

HONOR THE MEMORY OF THE DONOR BY A WISE
AND CONSTANT USE OF THE GIFT BESTOWED.”

(Dedication Speech on September 30,  1913) 



Early Collection
of Books

In the late 1700’s the first collection of books for circulation in Winchendon

was kept at Old Centre by Deacon Joshua Smith and later by Mark Whitcomb. 

Around 1810-1825 there was a collection of some 175 volumes kept in

the home of Ephraim Murdock on Front Street. 

Sometime between 1830 and 1835 another “library” was started and kept for

many years under the care of Mr. Whitcomb. Although it contained between

200 and 300 volumes, after a period of usefulness it, like its predecessors, was

sold at auction. 

There were other collections in town during the 1800s such as small school district libraries, an agricultural library and

Sunday school libraries. However, it wasn’t until 1850 that the movement for a more permanent library would begin.



Beginnings of a More
Permanent Library

The drive for a permanent library was ignited by a lecture on “Reading” given by Rev.

A. P. Marvin on the evening of Dec. 6, 1850 in the hall of the Winchendon Academy.

He closed his lecture calling for a library to provide “a fountain of improvement and of

happiness; an inexhaustible spring of the purest, richest nutriment for the immortal

minds of the youth of this generation, and of the many generations that are to come.”

At the close of the lecture it was proposed to organize a literary association, which

was named the “Winchendon Scientific and Literary Association”. The group raised

$300 by subscription to purchase books and bookcases. Over the years, the library

was housed in various locations on Front and Central Streets.

In March, 1867, upon vote of the Literary Association, the library passed into possession of the Town of Winchendon. At

this time the library contained about 1,500 volumes. The library was moved into the A. B. Smith block on Front Street and

Mrs. Lucy Poland (above) was appointed the town’s first librarian. The wife of local businessman Mr. Wheeler Poland, she

would serve as librarian until 1877 years. 



Library Looking for a Home
Fire in 1876 burned part of the library in the Smith block and destroyed several hundred volumes. The library was

moved to the new engine house (most recently the former police station on Pleasant Street). Some 10 years later, in

1887, the library moved to Town Hall (center of first floor pictured below right) and located in the room that is currently

the Town Clerk’s office with a Reading Room facing the street. 

Because of overcrowding in the Town Hall, in 1891 a request was made at town meeting to appropriate $10,000 for the

building of a public library. The motion was defeated

In 1901, trustees of Murdock Fund voted to offer former home of

E. Murdock, Jr. (then the Unitarian parsonage) to the Town for a

library. Townspeople voted to accept the offer, but church

members were not in agreement and the offer was withdrawn.

In 1907 the Town bought a lot on the corner of Central and

Summer Streets (current property of Clark Memorial YMCA)

for $4,000 to be used for a library. 

The library remained in the overcrowded Town Hall until 1913. 



Charles L. Beals
Library Benefactor
1 8 3 5  -  1 9 1 1  

Graduate of Philips Academy in 1855

A Civil War Veteran  in 1860

Very active in Winchendon.

Was the Secretary and Treasurer of the Winchendon Savings

Bank.

Donated $25,000 in 1909 for the library in memory of his

wife,Harriet Martha Beals.

 In 1910, purchased land on Pleasant Street, former residence of

E. Murdock Jr,  for $4,000 for the library site.  

Sadly, Mr. Beals wasn’t able to see the result of this donation.    



Birth of Winchendon’s
Public Library

1907

 The library trustees appealed to

Andrew Carnegie for a grant. He

offered $12,500 for a new library

building. It was voted at town

meeting to ask Mr. Carnegie for

$25,000 for a more suitable

building. He refused to increase

the offer.

1909

A Special town meeting was called on

June 5, 1909, at which a letter from local

businessman Mr. Charles L. Beals was read

offering $25,000 to the town for “a public

library to be called the Beals Public Library

in memory of my wife, Hattie M. Beals, and

George L. Beals and family.” The offer was

graciously accepted by the town.

1910

At the 1910 town meeting, Mr. Beals offered to

purchase land on Pleasant street at the former

residence of E. Murdock, Jr. and, later, Unitarian

parsonage for the library site. It was felt that the

lot bought by the town in 1907 on the corner of

Central and Summer Streets was not suitable –

too much traffic and noise. The town accepted

his offer and voted $5,000 for the foundation of

the new library and grading of the grounds.



1908
Mr. Beals gifted

$25,000 to the town

for a the library.

March 1910
Town Meeting accepted Mr.

Beals Offer to purchase land

on Pleasant Street for $4,000

May 1910
Town officially votes for

the library to be located

on Pleasant Street.

September 1910
Building Plans of the

library were accepted.

October 1910
Contractors and

builders were

confirmed. 

Late Fall 1910
Construction started on

the foundation.

1912
Electrical equipment

contacts confirmed.

March 1913
Town voted $2,500 for

furnishes for the library

Building the Library Timeline

September 30, 1913 Dedication and Opening of the library. 



Formal Dedication of the
Beals Memorial Library

The Beals Memorial Library was dedicated on Tuesday,

September 30, 1913, before a capacity audience at Town

Hall. Following presentation of the library keys by the

selectmen to the trustees and a series of speeches, a

dedicatory prayer was offered on the steps of the new

library. 

The new building was 70 X 60 feet, made of Indiana

limestone with granite trimmings, containing a reading

rooms, reference room, stackroom, meeting space, and

auditorium, and mahogany finish throughout. It housed

10,850 books. 

Total cost of the library was $32,300. 

Sadly, Mr. Charles L. Beals would never see the result of his generosity. To honor him the name of the library was changed

from Beals Public Library to Beals Memorial Library





Beals Library Directors
Mrs. Wheeler Poland 

1867-1877

Mrs. Sylvia Manzer

1887-1917

Georgia Farnumn

1917-1918

Cecil J Bancroft

1918-1919

Ida J Knight

1919-1923

Anna G. Rockwell

1924-1929

Mr. Leslie Arnold

1929-1942

Abbie Stinson

1942-1955

Lillie Holman

1955-1977

Julia White-Cardinal

1979-2014

Brian Tata

2015-2016

Manuel King 

2016-Present



1Interesting
Facts
about the
Beals
Library

2

3

4

5

6

In 1914, George C. Beals gave a

Chickering grand piano for the

library’s auditorium in memory

of his mother. The piano

remains in the auditorium and is

still used today. 

For many years, the library served

as home for the Winchendon

Women’s Club (1913-2002) for

meetings and activities. The club

was the first organization to meet

in the library on October 3, 1913.

Established in 1930, the

Winchendon Historical Society

(now the Winchendon History &

Cultural Center) used the library for

many years for meetings and

exhibits. They moved to their

location on Front Street in 2000.

The longest serving librarian

in town’s history was Julia

White-Cardinal who held the

position from 1979 to 2014.

When the library first opened

the hours were Monday-Friday:

3-5pm & 7-9pm

Saturday & Sunday: 2-5pm.

No books were allowed to be

checked out on Sundays. 

The first official library Book

Club was formed in 1930.

Named The Lecture-Book

Discussion Group. 



A Brief Look at Library through the Years 1914-1934

1917 1928 1933

1914 1918 1930 1934

The library had a

successful first year.

Number of items at the

end of the year” 11,906

Claimed to be the

library’s “Busiest” year.

Inter-Library loan

between local towns

started.

Library is closed for 24

days due to the Influenza

Epidemic. 

Card Catalog gets a

revamp by being

arranged alphabetically

by author, title, and

subject.

Story Hour for

children started.

Library hours

increased to 24

hours a week. 

First Library Book

Club forms. 

First Book Week

takes place, it was

a huge success. 

A young people

drama group forms.

Book Week

continues and it is

very popular with

the children in town. 

Some of our art

was loaned out

by the Worcester

Art Museum.

Number of items

at the end of the

year” 23,262.



A Brief Look at Library through the Years 1935-1965

1939 1952 1959

1938
1945-

1949
1956 1965

The library was the first

library to be given a

Concert Phonograph

by the Carnegie

Corporation.

The National

Progressive Education

Association displayed

a progressive toy

display. 

The library updated

the floors, heatings,

furniture, metal

stacks, and more. 

The first Summer

Reading Club

program starts.

The Library gets a

Book Return Box

located on the

front lawn. 

The Friends of the

Library officially

started.  

The Library was a

finalist for the

Dorothy Canfield

Fisher Memorial

Contest. 



A Brief Look at Library through the Years 1967-1994

1981 1985 1991

1979 1982 1987 1994

Children’s Story Hour

returns and is

sponsored by the

Kiwanis Club.

2nd revival The

Friends of the Library.

The library gets

their first public

computer for

patrons. 

VHS tapes and CD’s

are available for

loan. 

The Library joins

the CW MARS

Library Network.

The Museum Pass

Program started with

the Boston Science

Museum and Boston

Aquarium.

The Library

Improvement

Committee

Forms. Their

goal is to

expand and

make the

library

accessible to

all. 



A Brief Look at Library through the Years 1995-2010

2000-

2002
2009

1999 2003 2005 2010

3rd Revival of the

Friends of the Library

The Historical Society moves

out of Library Basement. 

Women’s Club gets

disbanded. 

DVD’s available for

loan. 

The Friends Book

Sale starts. 

E-Books and E-

Audiobooks are

available for loan

through CW-MARS

Library stops stamping

books and library cards.

The library goes digital

with Evergreen/CW MARS

The Library gets

WiFi for patrons

and staff. 



A Brief Look at Library through the Years 2011-2023

2013 2020

2011 2014- 2018 2023

Lighting struck the big

oak tree next to the

library. It damaged the

phone line, fire alarm

panel, and computers. 

We celebrated the

library 100th anniversary

with a Literary Ball. 

The Accessibility Project:

The library has a new

sidewalk level entrance,

elevator, stairway, and

bathrooms; all ADA

compliant. 

The library closes

and adapts for the

Covid-19 Pandemic

The Infrastucture

Project is complete

and the library has

updated electrical

and fire suppression 



1931
Discussion to start a Friends 

of the Library started. 

1951
The Friends of the

Library officially started. 

Pauline Dame: Chair

Donovan Jones: Trustee

Rep

Phyllis Thayer: Treasurer

Priscilla Mints: Secretary 

1981
Volunteers revived the

Friends of the library and

it stayed strong for a few

years. 

1999
Third times is a charm.

The Friends group gets

revived again and is still

providing valued

support today.  

Wine Raffle Basket

Daddy Daughter Dance

Escape Room

Scratch Ticket Raffle

Plant Sales

Indoor Yard Sales

Other Raffle Baskets

Book & Media Sale

Bake Sales

Past Fundraisers

Current Fundraisers

Friends
of the Beals Memorial  Library, Inc.  

A Brief History of the Friends

THE FRIENDS OF THE BEALS MEMORIAL LIBRARYTHE FRIENDS OF THE BEALS MEMORIAL LIBRARY
The Friends of the Library promote, encourage and support the educational and cultural programs
at the Beals Memorial Library. 
The Friends of the Beals Memorial Library volunteer their time to support Winchendon’s public

library. Through book sales and special events we raise funds to support library programs,

purchase new furniture and items for the collection. We also work to engage 

the community in raising positive public awareness through

 advocacy for the library.



With Deep Appreciation & Thanks
We want to express our gratitude to everyone who has

helped us over the past 110 years. Without you, the
Library would not thrive.  We are eager for the bright

future that lies ahead. Cheers to 110 more years.

Winchendon Courier 1900-1929

Research Sources: 
“History of the Town of Winchendon” by Reverend A. P. Marvin (1868)
“Winchendon Years 1764 – 1964” by Lois Stevenson Greenwood (1970)
Winchendon Town Reports 1909-2022


